

INDIAN SOCIETY FOR KAWASAKI DISEASE (ISKD)

CONSTITUTION AND BYE LAWS

INDIAN SOCIETY FOR KAWASAKI DISEASE

CONSTITUTION AND BYE LAWS

Article I - Name

The name of the Society shall be **Indian Society for Kawasaki Disease (ISKD)** (hereinafter referred to as the Society).

ARTICLE II - GOVERNANCE

The society shall be governed by this Constitution and its byelaws.

Article III - Registered Office

The registered office of the Society shall be House no ... Bangalore.

Article IV – Area of operation

The area of operation of the society shall be State of Karnataka and whole of India.

Article V - Objects

The objectives of the Society shall be:

1. To serve as advocates for patients with Kawasaki disease (KD) and help their families with reference to attainment of optimal physical, mental, psychological and social health.
2. To encourage and advance the knowledge study and practice of the management of Kawasaki disease in all possible ways.
3. To promote scientific collaboration amongst members who are devoted for serving Kawasaki disease and make rules regarding standards for their professional conduct.

4. To organize, establish, conduct, superintend or control institutions for promoting directly or indirectly, practice, study and research in Kawasaki disease especially in the area of etiology and prevention of coronary artery disease.
5. To try and establish and maintain preliminary brochures on KD, reading rooms, laboratories and research centers for the promotion of its objectives.
6. To provide facilities to students, scholars and institutions for the study of or research in any of its aspects by way of scholarships, fellowships, grants, endowments, etc.
7. To fund, maintain or award, either itself or in co-operation with other bodies or persons fellowships, prizes, certificates, and diplomas of proficiency in the study of KD and conduct such tests, examinations or other scrutiny as may be prescribed from time to time.
8. To print and publish official journals of the society, books, periodicals or publications on Kawasaki disease, which the society thinks desirable for the promotion of its objectives.
9. To train up personnel for carrying out the objectives of the society and to incur necessary expenses for the purpose.
10. To organize conferences, lectures, meetings, seminars, CMEs, exhibitions for the promotion of its objectives in all states of India.
11. To facilitate formation of branches of the society whether in India or elsewhere, for promoting all or any of the objectives of the society.
12. To consider and express its views on etiology, genetic studies, management KD and other questions affecting the prevention of coronary artery disease and to study, suggest, criticize or otherwise, advise or take part in the framing of laws affecting the science and practice of management of KD.
13. To co-operate, affiliate with other bodies and also to engage in such other forms of activities as may be decided upon by the society from time to time for the purpose of carrying out all or any of the objects of the society.
14. Supervising and advising on legislation affecting patients with KD.
15. Acquiring movable and immovable property and assets, purchasing, constructing, altering, maintaining, selling, running or mortgaging properties that may be necessary for the aforesaid objectives.
16. Framing bye-laws rules and regulations and to amend, add, alter or delete the same as and when necessary.
17. Doing all such other things as may be incidental to or conducive to the attainment of the aims and objectives of the society.
18. Co-operating with Kawasaki disease Foundation in India and other medical societies/associations as and when considered necessary.

19. To appoint officers and other staff as may be found necessary or convenient for the conduct and management of the affairs of the society and pay them such remuneration as may be prescribed from time to time.
20. To do all such other things as may be necessary, incidental, conducive or convenient to the attainment of the above objectives or any of them.

All the incomes, earnings, movable or immovable properties of the society shall be solely utilized and applied towards the promotion of its aims and objects only as set forth in the Memorandum of Association and no portion thereof shall be paid or transferred directly or indirectly whatsoever, by virtue of his membership. No member of the Governing body of the society shall be appointed to any salaried offices of the Association or any office of the Association paid by fees and no remuneration shall be given by the Association to any member of such governing body except repayment of out of pocket expenditure and interest on money lent or rent for premises demised to the Association. The society /Association by its constitution is required to apply its profits, if any, or the other income in promoting its objects. If upon the winding up or dissolution of the association there remains after satisfaction of all its debts and liabilities, any property whatsoever, it shall not be distributed among the members of the Society, but shall be given or transferred to some other institution, trust or society having objects similar to the objects of the ISKD to be determined by the members of the society at or before the time of dissolution. In case of non-existence of appropriate institutions, trusts or societies, the assets and properties shall be taken up by the Government of India.

5. Desirous person

We, the undersigned are desirous of forming a society namely Indian Society for Kawasaki Disease (ISKD) under the Societies Registration Act, 1860 in pursuance of this Memorandum of Association of the Society.

	Name	Designation	Photo Graph	Signature
1.	Dr. Saji Philip Division of Pediatric Cardiology, Gregorios Cardiovascular Center, Parumala, Kerala, India	President & Founder member		

2.	Dr. Priyankar Pal Associate Professor, Institute of Child Health, No.11, Dr Biresh Guha Street, Park Circus, Ballygunge, Kolkata, West Bengal 700017	Secretary general & Founder Member		
3.	Dr. Tapas Sabui Professor of Pediatrics, RG Kar Medical College, 1, Kshudiram Bose Sarani, Kolkata, West Bengal 700004	Founder Member , Vice-President & Treasurer		
4.	Dr. Surjit Singh Division of Pediatric Allergy Immunology, Department of Pediatrics, Advanced Pediatrics Centre, Post Graduate Institute of Medical Education and Research, Chandigarh-160012. India	President Elect & Founder Member		
5.	Dr. Nutan Kamath Professor of Pediatrics, Kasturba Medical College, Mangalore, Karnataka	Founder Member		

6.	Dr. Rakesh Mondal Professor of Pediatrics, Medical College and Hospital, 88, College street, Kolkata, West Bengal 700073	Founder Member		
7.	Dr. Deepti Suri Associate Professor, Division of Pediatric Allergy Immunology, Department of Pediatrics, Advanced Pediatrics Centre, Post Graduate Institute of Medical Education and Research, Chandigarh-160012. India	Founder Member		
8.	Dr. Dhruvajyoti Sharma Assistant Professor, Department of Pediatrics, Guwahati Medical College, Guwahati, Assam	Founder Member		
9.	Dr. Avinash Sharma Division of Pediatric Allergy Immunology, Department of Pediatrics, Advanced Pediatrics Centre, Post Graduate Institute of Medical Education	Founder Member		

	and Research, Chandigarh-160012. India			
10.	Dr. Vignesh Pandiarajan Division of Pediatric Allergy Immunology, Department of Pediatrics, Advanced Pediatrics Centre, Post Graduate Institute of Medical Education and Research, Chandigarh-160012. India	Founder Member		
11.	Dr. Ankur Jindal Division of Pediatric Allergy Immunology, Department of Pediatrics, Advanced Pediatrics Centre, Post Graduate Institute of Medical Education and Research, Chandigarh-160012. India	Founder Member		
12.	Dr. Aman Gupta Division of Pediatric Allergy Immunology, Department of Pediatrics, Advanced Pediatrics Centre, Post Graduate Institute of Medical Education	Founder Member		

	and Research, Chandigarh-160012. India			
13.	Dr. Sandesh Kumar Division of Pediatric Allergy Immunology, Department of Pediatrics, Advanced Pediatrics Centre, Post Graduate Institute of Medical Education and Research, Chandigarh-160012. India	Founder Member		
14.	Dr. Rakesh Kumar Pilania Division of Pediatric Allergy Immunology, Department of Pediatrics, Advanced Pediatrics Centre, Post Graduate Institute of Medical Education and Research, Chandigarh-160012. India	Founder Member		
13.	Dr. Sagar Bhattad Pediatric Immunologist and Rheumatologist, Department of Pediatrics, Aster CMI Hospital, Bengaluru – 560092, India	Founder member and General Secretary		

14.	Dr. Anand P Pediatrician with special interest in Pediatric Rheumatology, Manipal Hospital, Bengaluru – 560076, India	Founder member and Treasurer		
15.	Dr. Sharath Kumar Rheumatologist, Optima Arthritis and Rheumatology Clinic, Mahalakshmi layout Bengaluru – 560086, India	Founder member and Joint Treasurer		
16.	Dr Nagaraj Pediatrician with special interest in Pediatric Rheumatology, Columbia Asia Hospital, Hebbal, Bengaluru	Founder member and Joint Secretary		
17	Dr Sowmya Nagarajan Pediatric Allergist and Immunologist, Shubhashri Specialist Centre, Malleshwaram, Bengaluru – 560003, India	Founder member		
18	Dr Aruna Bhat, Pediatric Rheumatologist, Narayana Hrudayalaya Hospital, Hosur Road, Bengaluru – 560099, India	Founder member		
19	Dr Jyothi Raghuram, Pediatrician with special interest in Pediatric Rheumatology, Columbia Asia	Founder member		

	Hospital, Ramagondanahalli, Varthur Hobli, Bengaluru -560066, India			
20	Dr Rashna Dass H, Consultant, RIGPA Children clinic, Guwahati, Assam – 781006, India	Founder member		
21	Dr Elizabeth, Aizawi, Mizoram	Founder member		
22	Dr Manphool Singhal, Associate Professor, Department of Radiodiagnosis and Imaging, Post Graduate Institute of Medical Education and Research, Chandigarh-160012, India	Founder member		

6. Date and Station:

7. Witness (Advocate or Gazetted Officer or Notary)

INDIAN SOCIETY FOR KAWASAKI DISEASE (ISKD)

BYE LAWS

Article I - Name

The name of the Society shall be the **Indian Society for Kawasaki Disease (ISKD)** (hereinafter referred to as the Society).

ARTICLE II - GOVERNANCE

The society shall be governed by this Constitution and its byelaws.

Article III - Registered Office

The registered office of the Society shall be House no, Bangalore

Article IV – Area of operation

The area of operation of the society shall be State of Karnataka and whole of India.

Article V - Membership

The membership of the Society shall be the following classes:

(1) Founder members

Medical Practitioners holding allopathic qualifications recognized under schedule I or III of the Indian Medical Council Act 1956 and interested in the science and art of Kawasaki Disease

or Non-medical scientists with a research interest in KD who would initially contribute to the development of the upcoming society will be considered Founder Members. The first set of office bearers will be selected from amongst the Founder Members. Tenure of new office bears will be for minimum two years. The duration can be changed, in exceptional circumstances, as per the decision of general body.

(2) Associate Member:

Paramedical staff, Non-medical scientists other than **research workers, Philanthropists / donors / spouse of Life Members and interested family members of KD would only be eligible for the associate membership of the society.** Their name(s) is/are unanimously recommended by the managing committee and passed by a two-third majority at a meeting of the general body. An Associate Member shall be entitled to participate in all the activities of the society, but he/she shall not be entitled to either vote at a meeting of the society or become an office bearer.

(2) Life Members

Those who are eligible for membership on paying an amount equivalent to 10 times of the initial joining fee can acquire life membership. Medical Practitioners holding allopathic qualifications recognized under schedule I or III of the Indian Medical Council Act 1956 and interested in the science and art of primary immune deficiency shall be eligible for membership.

(3) Honorary Members

Any individual who has rendered outstanding service to the field of Kawasaki disease to this membership provided his/her name is unanimously recommended by the managing committee and passed by a two-third majority at a meeting of the general body. An Honorary Member shall be entitled to participate in all the activities of the society, but he/she shall not be entitled to either vote at a meeting of the society or become an office bearer.

(4) Corporate members

Representatives from the corporate sector willing to sponsor the activities of KD would be eligible to become Corporate Member provided their name(s) is/are unanimously recommended by the managing committee and passed by a two-third majority at a meeting of the general body. A Corporate Member shall be entitled to participate in all the activities of the society, but he/she shall not be entitled to either vote at a meeting of the society or become an office bearer.

ARTICLE VI -Subscription

Founder members will subscribe with a Fee of **Rs. 5000** towards Life Membership.

The annual subscription fee for Associate members will be Rs. 500 and for Life membership, Rs. 3000;

Corporate Members will subscribe with a Yearly fee of Rs. 50,000.

These figures may be changed by the Society from time to time.

Article VII - Privileges of Membership

1. All ordinary members and life members shall be entitled to participate in all the activities of the Society including right to vote and shall be entitled to receive all publications of the society free of charge.
2. New Members: Membership will commence from the beginning of the financial year of the Society (1st March). Any new member whose application may be under consideration may attend and take part in the deliberations of the society, if it is held prior to his/her being elected but will not have the right of voting as a member till his/her membership is approved by General Body.
3. All Associate Members shall be entitled to participate in scientific and social activities of the society. They, however, shall not be entitled to vote or hold the position of office-bearers.
4. Founder members and corporate members will get their differentiation badges as per the decision of executive committee.

Article VIII - Cessation of Membership Privileges and Re-admission

1. Membership of the society will cease:-
 - (a) by voluntary resignation.
 - (b) If the managing committee decides by a two-third majority to delete the name of a member from the membership for any proved unprofessional behavior or conduct and is confirmed by the general body at its next meeting. Before any disciplinary action of such a nature is taken, the offending member(s) will be served with a notice in writing to appear before the next meeting of the managing committee and will be given an opportunity to explain his/her conduct.
2. The privileges of the members such as entitlement to receive copies of the journals and proceedings will be suspended if the subscription remains unpaid for one year after it becomes due. Membership will be terminated after two notices sent by registered post by Hon. Gen. Secretary for payment of membership fee are unheeded.
3. Re-admission can be considered on payment of all dues as prescribed in the by-laws. This re-admission shall be treated as new admission to the society.

Article IX - General Body

1. Ordinary and life members shall constitute the general body of the Society.
2. It shall govern the affairs of the Society through its elected office bearers.
3. (a) It shall hold annual general body meeting during the annual general body meeting during the annual conference.
(b) The general body meeting can be called by any of the following:
 - (i) The President
 - (ii) On a requisition signed by at least 5 members of the managing committee.
 - (iii) On a requisition signed by at least 25 members of the society.
(c) Quorum: **Minimum of one-fifth or 20 members**, whichever is less, shall form the quorum. For constitutional amendment, the quorum shall be **one-third or 50 members on rolls of the Society on that day, whichever is less.**

Article X - Managing Committee

The affairs of the Society shall be managed by the managing committee elected by the general body.

1. COMPOSITION:

It shall consist of the following:

- i. President
- ii. President Elect
- iii. Vice-President
- iv. Hon. General Secretary
- v. Hon. Joint Secretary
- vi. Hon. Treasurer
- vii. Hon. Joint Treasurer
- viii. Immediate Past President and General Secretary.

2. FUNCTIONS:

- a) It shall review the recommendations of the various statutory committees.
- b) Managing committee shall act on behalf of the general body for running the affairs of the society under its constitution and bye-laws.
- c) It shall carry out the policies and mandate of Society and shall be responsible to it.

- d) It shall have power to invest and deal with the finances as it may resolve as tending to benefit the Society.
- e) Such money and properties of the Society as are not utilized for the object of the Society may be invested in such a manner in such Banks and in such a way as the managing committee may, at their discretion think proper. The managing committee may change the investments in order to better fulfill the objects of the society.
- f) The managing committee shall have power to purchase, construct or acquire on lease or in exchange on hire, by gift or otherwise any real or personal property and any rights or privilege necessary or convenient for the purpose of the society and to improve, develop manage, sell, mortgage, dispose off, turn to account or otherwise deal with all or any part of the property of the Society, not vested in the trust.
- g) The managing committee may constitute as many committees as it deems fit for furtherance of the objects of the Society. These committees may form bye-laws of their own for their functioning with the approval of the managing committee.
- h) Decision and recommendations of the managing committee shall be subject to the approval of the General Body.

(3) **MEETINGS:**

- (a) The members of the committees **shall meet at least once a year**, preferably during the annual conference. **Minimum of one-fifth or 20 members**, whichever is less, shall form the quorum.
- (b) The Hon. Secretary shall circulate the agenda for the meeting at least a month before the date of the meeting.
- (c) The President, when present, shall preside over the meeting of the managing committee. In his/her absence, the Vice President shall officiate for him/her.
- (d) The President or Chairman in the event of a tie will have a casting vote.
- (e) The voting may be by show of hands, or by ballot which-ever is considered desirable by the President.
- (f) Whenever it is found inconvenient to call a meeting of the managing committee and whenever the Hon. Secretary deems it desirable that the opinion of the managing committee be obtained, they shall do so by post and act in accordance with the view of the authority.
- (g) Special meeting of the Managing Committee can be called by requisition of one-third members of the managing committee in writing.

ARTICLE XI - Additional committees

The President and General Secretary would be at liberty to appoint one or more committees to facilitate the working of the society. The recommendations of all the committee shall be reviewed by the managing committee before presentation to the general body.

Article XII - Election and Tenure of Office Bearers

The Society shall elect the following office bearers:-

1. The tenure of office-bearers shall be 02 years.
2. The Vice President shall be elected by the general Body every 2 years. He/she will hold office for 2 years, and then become the President for the following year.
3. The Secretaries, Treasurers and the other members of the committees will be elected by a meeting of the general body for a period of two years or at the end of 3rd annual conference whichever is longer at the end of which period they will be eligible for re-election for no more than one more term. To Facilitate smooth functioning, the Hon. Gen Secretary and Hon. Treasurer should be from the same city /institute.
4. The election will be by secret ballot as per conditions and procedures laid down in the bye-laws.
5. The vice president of the previous year will become President from the commencement of the following conference and will continue to be in office throughout the year till relieved by his successor at the commencement of the next conference. He/she will therefore, preside over the meeting of the managing committee and general body in the beginning of his/her presidential year.
6. In the event of vacancies occurring among office bearers. The following succession procedure shall be effective:-
 - (i) President will be succeeded by President Elect.
 - (ii) President Elect will be succeeded by Vice President.
 - (iii) Hon. General Secretary will be succeeded by the Hon. Joint Secretary.
 - (iv) Hon. Treasure will be succeeded by Hon. Joint Treasurer. Other office-bearers may be elected by the managing committee. The member so elected shall hold office for a period for which his/her predecessor would have functioned.

Office-bearers and committee members shall cease to hold office:-

- (a) When the period of their tenure is over.

- (b) If by a resolution, the general body decides by a two-third of the members present that certain office-bearers be removed from office.
7. Once a member has been the President of the society, he/she will not hold the election for any other junior post or the same post. This has been done to maintain the high dignity of the post of the President.

Article XIV - Function of the President and Vice President

The President

He/she will act on behalf of the society and will represent the society during his/her tenure. He/she shall regulate the proceeding of the Society and the managing committee. He/she shall uphold the constitution and enforce the rules and regulations framed there under. He/she shall preside over all the functions of the Society and meetings of general body and managing committee.

In the absence of the President, the Vice President shall officiate for him/her.

Article XV - Functions of the Hon. General Secretary

1. The Hon. General Secretary shall manage all correspondence and shall keep the minutes of the society and Committee meetings which will be read and confirmed at the following meeting respectively. He/she shall have charge of the office and keep a register of all papers communicated to him/her. He/she shall be responsible to the Society for carrying out the resolutions of the society.
2. All documents, covenants, contracts shall be made jointly by the Hon. General Secretary, the President and the Hon. Treasurer.
3. The property of the Society shall be under the control of the Hon. General Secretary.
4. The Hon. General Secretary and the President may incur an expenditure in unforeseen circumstances and not provided in the budget up to Rs. 50,000/.

Article XVI - Functions of Hon. Treasurer

1. The Hon. Treasurer shall receive money due to the Society and shall make all payments in accordance with any rules frames by the managing committee and shall maintain an accurate account of all such transactions and every receipt given shall be signed by him/her. He/she will prepare a statement regarding the financial position of the Society jointly with the Hon. General Secretary which will be

- audited by the certified auditors and present the same at the annual meeting of the general body for adoption.
2. The Hon. Treasurer will prepare an annual budget of the Society and place it before the managing committee for approval. The budget as approved by the managing committee shall be placed before the general body for final sanction.
 3. The accounts shall be operated by:-
 - a) One of either Hon. General Secretary or Hon. Joint Secretary, and
 - b) One of either Hon. Treasurer or Hon. Joint Treasurer.
 4. He/she will send a minimum of 2 reminders under registered post to defaulting members before termination of membership.
 5. He/she shall maintain a list of current members and their addresses.

Article XVII - Finances

1. The finances of the Society would be maintained by the Hon. Treasurer under the following broad heads depending on the day to day requirements of the society:
 - a) **General Account:**

The general account will include all receipts by way of:-

 - (i) Subscription
 - (ii) Sale of property belonging to the Society and payments made for the holding of the conference, printing, stationery etc. required for efficient working of the Society.
 - b) **Trust Account:**

The trust account will be in connection with such donations as may be received from time to time deposited with the Society as Trustees, for the encouragement and improvement of the science of primary immune deficiency in India.
 - c) **Reserve Fund:**
 - (i) All life membership subscription shall go to the reserve fund. Only the interest from this will be transferred to general fund.
 - (ii) Any other income or unconditional donations may be added to this fund at the discretion of the managing committee with the approval of the general body.
 - (iii) The principal amount of reserve fund is meant for specific purpose of construction of a building for the headquarters of the society or any other project like scholarship etc. as decided by the Society.
 - d) **Journal fund:** this would be used as and when a journal is started by the society

No person or persons in whom, for the time being, any funds or money or any property movable or immovable of the Society may be vested shall be answerable for any loss arising in the administration or application of the said fund for any damage to or deterioration in the said property unless such loss, damage or deterioration shall happen by or through his or their willful default or neglect as determined by the managing committee or its authorized sub-committees.

The Treasurer shall prepare and submit the audited statements of income every year.

Article XVIII - Conferences

1. The Society shall organize a conference once in 2 years or more frequently if so deemed necessary by the General Body.
2. The venue of the next conference shall be decided by the general body.
3. After mid-term managing committee decision about the date of conference, preliminary notice will be sent to every member by the Secretary.
4. The audited statement of accounts of the conference shall be submitted to the Hon. Treasurer of the Society for its permission of the Managing Committee.

Article XIX - Bye-Laws

The Society under its constitution shall frame bye-laws for smooth functioning of the affairs of the Society.

Article XX - Amendment to the Constitution

1. For constitutional amendment, the quorum shall be **one-third or 50 members on rolls of the Society on that day, whichever is less.**
2. Any Amendment, addition, alteration, deletion in the Constitution shall be made if approved by two-third majority of the members present at the general body meeting.
3. The managing committee may recommend any amendment, addition alteration or deletion to the bye-laws, provided they give at least 30 days clear notice with the details of the proposed amendments to the members of the Society before the general body meeting.
4. Any member may propose an amendment, addition, alteration or deletion to the bye-laws giving a minimum of 30 days clear notice before the general body meeting. The proposed amendment shall be submitted in writing and shall be duly seconded and signed by ten other members of the Society.

Article XXI - Dissolution of the Society (As per provision of Section 12 & 12 A of Society Registration Act, 1860)

If upon dissolution of the Society there shall remain after satisfaction of all its debts and liabilities, any property whatsoever, the same shall not be paid to or distributed among members of the Society or any of them, but shall be given or transferred to association or associations, institution or institutions having objects similar to any of the objects of the Society to be determined by the votes of not less than three-fifth of the members present personally or by proxy in a meeting at or before the time of the dissolution or in default thereof by any High Court of Judicature in its ordinary original jurisdiction of the state in which the registered office of the Society may be situated at that time.

The Indian Society for Kawasaki Disease Bye-Laws

I Election Procedures

- a) The prospective candidates for all the posts for which the election is to be held shall send their nomination for the post for which they are seeking election on nomination forms available from the Hon. General Secretary. The Hon. General Secretary will acknowledge the receipt of nomination.
- b) Hon. General Secretary should keep everything ready so that elections, if necessary, can be completed expeditiously.
- d) Only ordinary members and life members will be allowed to vote. Hon. Treasurer will, therefore, keep ready an up-to-date list of such members during election time.
- e) President will constitute an election committee consisting of 3 members with one of them as Chief Election Officer.
- f) In case of a tie, the casting vote of the President of the meeting will decide the result.

II. Awards and Orations

May be given by the society as considered appropriate.

Article XVI - Functions of Investigator

1. Principal investigator should govern investigations and research in Kawasaki disease in India. Members of IKDS should inform their research activities to principal investigator or associate investigator.
2. Investigator has authority to appoint other responsible research scholars to overlook their activities and guide them to publish papers.

Article XVI – KD registry

All members are encouraged to register their cases to IKDS periodically to get the data. Data analysis will be done by the research committee under the principal investigator.

Article XVI –web site.

Efforts would be made to host a website for the society as soon as possible.

Name	Designation	Photo Graph	Signature	
Dr. Saji Philip Division of Pediatric Cardiology, Gregorios Cardiovascular Center, Parumala, Kerala	ISKD Founder member and President			
Dr. Surjit Singh Division of Pediatric Allergy Immunology, Department of Pediatrics, Advanced Pediatrics Centre, Post Graduate Institute of Medical Education and Research, Chandigarh-160012. India	ISKD Founder Member and President Elect			Signature

<p>Dr. Tapas Sabui Professor of Pediatrics, RG Kar Medical College, 1, Kshudiram Bose Sarani, Kolkata, West Bengal 700004</p>	<p>ISKD Founder Member and Vice-President</p>			
<p>Dr. Nutan Kamath Professor of Pediatrics, Kasturba Medical College, Mangalore, Karnataka</p>	<p>ISKD Founder Member</p>			
<p>Dr. Rakesh Mondal Professor of Pediatrics, Medical College and Hospital, 88, College street, Kolkata, West Bengal 700073</p>	<p>ISKD Founder Member</p>			
<p>Dr. Priyankar Pal Associate Professor, Institute of Child Health, No.11, Dr Biresh Guha Street, Park Circus, Ballygunge, Kolkata, West Bengal 700017</p>	<p>ISKD Founder Member</p>			
<p>Dr. Deepti Suri Associate Professor, Division of Pediatric Allergy Immunology, Department of</p>	<p>ISKD Founder Member</p>			

<p>Pediatrics, Advanced Pediatrics Centre, Post Graduate Institute of Medical Education and Research, Chandigarh-160012. India</p>				
<p>Dr. Dhrubajyoti Sharma Assistant Professor, Department of Pediatrics, Guwahati Medical College, Guwahati, Assam</p>	<p>ISKD Founder Member</p>			
<p>Dr. Avinash Sharma Division of Pediatric Allergy Immunology, Department of Pediatrics, Advanced Pediatrics Centre, Post Graduate Institute of Medical Education and Research, Chandigarh-160012. India</p>	<p>ISKD Founder Member</p>			
<p>Dr. Vignesh Pandiarajan Division of Pediatric Allergy</p>	<p>ISKD Founder Member</p>			

<p>Immunology, Department of Pediatrics, Advanced Pediatrics Centre, Post Graduate Institute of Medical Education and Research, Chandigarh-160012. India</p>				
<p>Dr. Ankur Jindal Division of Pediatric Allergy Immunology, Department of Pediatrics, Advanced Pediatrics Centre, Post Graduate Institute of Medical Education and Research, Chandigarh-160012. India</p>	<p>ISKD Founder Member</p>			
<p>Dr. Aman Gupta Division of Pediatric Allergy Immunology, Department of Pediatrics, Advanced Pediatrics Centre, Post Graduate Institute of Medical Education and</p>	<p>ISKD Founder Member</p>			

Research, Chandigarh-160012. India				
Dr. Sandesh Kumar Division of Pediatric Allergy Immunology, Department of Pediatrics, Advanced Pediatrics Centre, Post Graduate Institute of Medical Education and Research, Chandigarh-160012. India	ISKD Founder Member			
Dr. Rakesh Kumar Pilania Division of Pediatric Allergy Immunology, Department of Pediatrics, Advanced Pediatrics Centre, Post Graduate Institute of Medical Education and Research, Chandigarh-160012. India	ISKD Founder Member			
Dr. Sagar Bhattad Pediatric	Founder member and General			

Immunologist and Rheumatologist, Department of Pediatrics, Aster CMI Hospital, Bengaluru – 560092, India	Secretary			
Dr. Anand P Pediatrician with special interest in Pediatric Rheumatology, Manipal Hospital, Bengaluru – 560076, India	Founder member and Treasurer			
Dr. Sharath Kumar Rheumatologist, Optima Arthritis and Rheumatology Clinic, Mahalakshmi layout Bengaluru – 560086, India	Founder member and Joint Treasurer			
Dr Nagaraj Pediatrician with special interest in Pediatric Rheumatology, Columbia Asia Hospital, Hebbal, Bengaluru	Founder member and Joint Secretary			
Dr Sowmya Nagarajan Pediatric Allergist and Immunologist, Shubhashri Specialist Centre, Malleshwaram,	Founder member			

Bengaluru – 560003, India				
Dr Aruna Bhat, Pediatric Rheumatologist, Narayana Hrudayalaya Hospital, Hosur Road, Bengaluru – 560099, India	Founder member			
Dr Jyothi Raghuram, Pediatrician with special interest in Pediatric Rheumatology, Columbia Asia Hospital, Ramagondanahalli, Varthur Hobli, Bengaluru –560066, India	Founder member			
Dr Rashna Dass H, Consultant, RIGPA Children clinic, Guwahati, Assam – 781006, India	Founder member			
Dr Elizabeth, Aizawi, Mizoram	Founder member			
Dr Manphool Singhal, Associate Professor, Department of Radiodiagnosis and Imaging, Post Graduate Institute of Medical Education and Research, Chandigarh-160012,	Founder member			

India				
-------	--	--	--	--

6. Date and Station:

7. Witness (Advocate or Gazetted Officer or Notary)